安小雅 雅思口语素材

第二套 Part2 (高分版串联) 适合学生党使用

关于素材使用方法和答疑

素材使用方法请看客服单独发《不看后悔一辈子》

客服的微信提供素材售后服务,有疑问都可以在微信上询问哦!在微信通讯录搜:安小雅。即可找到客服[~]

店主开通的福利微信公众号:安小雅

公众号会在每场考试后发布考试答案回忆,还有最新考试资讯,雅思技巧等等福利哦!

雅思考官一对一

我们跟多位 10 年以上经验的资深雅思考官合作,提供口语/写作一对一私教服务,教学内容可自定义。 行业金字塔尖师资水平,有意请联系微信客服。

串联版 Part2 目录以及使用说明

串联版 Part2 指的是一篇范文回答多个话题。具体分类看看以下目录就知道了。但是有些话题问的方向不一样,如 果用同一篇范文来回答的话会有跑题嫌疑。所以有些串联的话题我们还是写了 2-3 篇范文,根据问题的问法稍作了 一些修改。但是大体上的内容和思路都是一致的[~]

如果我觉得素材有错怎么办?

我们的素材都是经过店主和外教一起编写和检查过的哦! 您可以放心!

其实外国人在生活中有一些常用的口头上的表达,看起来很奇怪但实际并没有错的,国内老师也不会懂这些。所以呀! 如果你觉得素材有错,我们是非常欢迎您来询问我们滴!千万不要觉得不好意思哦!下面举两个例子:

"Anna is two years my elder." 安娜比我大两岁。"She is four months my younger" 她比我小四个月。

这是一种比较现代的说法,当然我们平时都会讲"Anna is two years older than me"和"She is four months younger than me."但其实外国人都会用前者多一些的。

"the majority of the girls were content discussing about how handsome or how affluent their boyfriends were." 女孩子们都在热烈地讨论他们的男朋友有多帅。

这是现代英语的另一个特征,就是外国人在口头上都常常会省略掉介词。这里就把 were content with discussing 的 with 去掉了。这在口语上是完全没问题的,但大家在写作中就尽量要避免哦。

目前资料里的题目是 5-8 月的保留题,一共 25 个话题。 5 月初还会更新 5-8 月的新题,新题也是 25 个话题。

新题会在群里更新,第2套P2会在5月15日开始更新,5月25日左右更新完答案

保留题+新题=完整题库,每个话题考到的概率完全完全一模一样,并没有重点之分。

目录

(一)垃圾场整改	4
01-02: 住所附近的变化 & 去过的一个空气不好的地方	4
(二)高铁上小孩哭闹	6
03-05: 去过的一个嘈杂地方 & 投诉并得到满意结果 & 收到想要的东西	6
(三)看美剧	9
06-07: 一个享受的生活习惯 & 年轻时的空闲活动	9
(四)做PPT	11
08-09: 以后想学习的事情 & 教朋友或亲戚的时刻	11
10: 常用网站	13
(五)学做饭	
11-12: 不寻常的一顿饭 & 跟别人一起做事的经历	
(六) 渣渣辉	16
13-14: 难用的科技产品 & 不喜欢的广告	
(七)学游泳	
15: 完成的骄傲事情	
16: 别人的好消息	19
(八)男/女朋友	
17-18: 喜欢一起工作/学习的人 & 派对里交谈甚欢的人	20
(单独话题)	
19: 家里舒服的某处地方	22
20: 喜欢的演员	23
21: 见过的有趣老人	24
22: 迟到	25
23: 想短暂停留的城市	26
24: 开学的第一天	27
25: 想了解更多的历史	

(一) 垃圾场整改

01-02: 住所附近的变化 & 去过的一个空气不好的地方

Describe a recent development which has improved	Describe a place you went to where the air was not
the area where you live	clean.
Some instructions you can follow:	Some instructions you can follow:
What the new development is	Where the place was
What was there before this development	When and Why you went there
How long it took to complete	Why the air was not clean
And explain how it has improved the area where you	And explain how you felt about being in a place
live.	where the air was not clean.

《住所附近的变化》 🥖

A household waste disposal system was erected near our community and while it was around it polluted foul smelling air into the neighborhood. I would regularly pass it each night as I exercised my dog. I found myself feeling compelled to plug up my nose and speed past the area due to the rank odour.

This station had been constructed a few years past to manage the copious amount of household waste produced by the local community. All the refuse we discarded into our trash cans was collected and conveyed to the station by enormous vehicles.

However, there have been some very welcome and pleasing developments recently. As a result of the constant petition and complaints of the local community, the station was relocated to a remote area about half a year ago. All the buildings and any remaining trace of the station were also eradicated. Currently, the area is an idyllic park in the centre of the street after a complete transformation from its previous repulsive condition. This project of demolition and reconstruction only took about six months.

I despised this waste disposal station from the moment of its construction to the second of its demolition. I was ecstatic after learning that the waste station was to be relocated to a remote region. And I was overjoyed with the completion of the street park. Although the park may be quite minuscule, the removal of the waste station has vastly enhanced the quality of life for the denizens of this block. The tranquil space allows the elderly and children to have a place of leisure and entertainment. My mother will frequently visit the park to dance in the square on pleasant evenings and has made a whole host of friends from this activity.中文翻译:

我们小区不远处有一座生活垃圾处理站,这导致附近的空气非常不好。我每天晚上出门遛狗,都会经过 这座垃圾站。每次路过我都不得不捂住鼻子和加快脚步,因为那里的气味实在是太难闻了。

<mark>这座垃圾站大概是几年前建成的,附近处理周边居民的生活垃圾。我们扔在垃圾桶里的垃圾,都会被大</mark> 货车运到这里集中处理。

最近一段时间这里发生了令人欣喜的改变,由于附近居民的不断投诉,垃圾站在半年前搬走了。原先垃圾站所在地的建筑也全部被拆除。现在那片土地已经被改造为街心公园,整个工程大概只用了半年时间。

<mark>很长时间以来,我都非常讨厌这间垃圾处理站。</mark>当得知垃圾站要被拆除,我高兴的跳了起来。街心公园 建成后,更是别提有多开心了。虽然公园的面积很小,但垃圾站变成公园,很大程度改善了这个街区的 居住环境,也让老人小孩有了休闲娱乐的地方。现在,我妈妈每天晚上都会去公园跳广场舞,还因此认 识了新的朋友。

《去过的一个空气不好的地方》

A household waste disposal system was erected near our community, and it has polluted foul smelling air into the neighborhood. I would regularly pass it each night as I exercised my dog. I found myself feeling compelled to plug up my nose and speed past the area due to the rank odour.

This station had been constructed a few years past to manage the copious amount of household waste produced by the local community. All the refuse we discarded into our trash cans was collected and conveyed to the station by enormous vehicles.

The horrendous odour emitted into the surrounding air since the station was not completely sealed off from the elements. The situation was manageable during the winter months. However, upon the advent of summer, the air surrounding the station was intolerable. What's more, the site also generated copious amounts of litter on the pavements.

I despised this waste disposal station from the moment of its construction. It seriously affected the surrounding air. I was also considerably concerned that the toxic particles in the air would be a detriment to the health of me and my family. The stench of the refuse made me retch, vomit and violently cough at times. It goes without saying that nobody desires living in an area with rank odours. My greatest desire is that the station is demolished and relocated far away so that I am free to venture out and walk around my community without being assailed by the stench.

中文思路:

我们小区不远处有一座生活垃圾处理站,这导致附近的空气非常不好。我每天晚上出门遛狗,都会经过 这座垃圾站。每次路过我都不得不捂住鼻子和加快脚步,因为那里的气味实在是太难闻了。

这座垃圾站大概是几年前建成的,附近处理周边居民的生活垃圾。我们扔在垃圾桶里的垃圾,都会被大 货车运到这里集中处理。由于垃圾处理站并不是完全封闭的,所以难闻的气味难免会散发到周围的空气 中。冬天的时候情况还没那么糟糕,但是到了夏天,这里的空气就会变得让人难以忍受。同时地上会产 生大量的污水。

很长时间以来,我都非常讨厌这间垃圾处理站。它的存在严重影响了周边的空气。同时我很担心空气中的有害物质会影响我和家人的身体健康。垃圾的臭味会让我感到不适,有时我甚至会咳嗽。没有人会喜欢呆在充满异味的地方,我最大的愿望就是这间垃圾站能够早日搬走,这样我就能自由的在附近散步了。

(二) 高铁上小孩哭闹

03-05: 去过的一个嘈杂地方 & 投诉并得到满意结果 & 收到想要的东西

Describe a place you went to that	Describe a time you made a	Describe a time when someone
was very noisy.	complaint about something and	gave you something that you
Some instructions you can follow:	were satisfied with the result.	really wanted.
Where this place was	Who you complained to	Some instructions you can follow:
What you did there	Is it easy to complain	Who this person was
Why it was very noisy	What you complained about	What this person gave you
And explain how you felt about	And explain why you were	Why you wanted this thing
this place being so noisy.	satisfied with the result of the	And explain how you felt when
	complaint.	you got this thing.

《去过的一个嘈杂地方》

You may feel incredulous and be surprised to hear that the most deafening place I have been to recently was a high-speed train carriage. Last month, I boarded the high-speed train to commute back to my hometown as I normally do. I purchased an early morning ticket to make it home in time for lunch. Originally, it was my intention to catch up on some sleep while in the carriage.

After I boarded the train, I discovered it was filled with a sea of people which would normally be quite unusual but was the result of the approaching holiday season. Every seat on the carriage was occupied and my ears were assaulted by a cacophony of noises.

I kept getting hit by waves of exhaustion, so, I put on my earphones in an attempt to drown out the surrounding racket and soon after was able to fall asleep. However, I was rudely awakened by the ceaseless noise, which was so deafening it was utterly impossible for me to return to my slumber. Once I removed my headphones, I arose to discover a juvenile boy was bawling his eyes out a few rows behind me. His father seemed inured to the situation and therefore did nothing to quell the boy's crying.

I became enraged by his apathy at that moment. So, I ventured up to the father to make my feeling's plain, anticipating that the child could lower his voice and cease his infernal wailing. Unfortunately, my words fell on deaf ears. The little boy resumed his squealing after a brief pause. I am of the opinion that it is a disgrace to make a racket in public as it affects and offends all the people nearby. Being young is no excuse for disrupting social order.

你一定不能相信,最近我去过最吵闹的地方,竟然是高铁车厢。上个月,我像往常一样坐高铁回老家。 为了能在中午前赶回家吃饭,我买了一大早的票。我计划在车厢里好好睡一觉。

<mark>上车之后我发现,</mark>由于临近假期,车厢里的人比往常多很多。所有的座位都坐满了,<mark>因此我的耳边充满</mark> <mark>了各种各样的噪音。</mark>

虽然周围很吵,但我实在是太困了,我戴上耳机就开始睡觉。不知道睡了多久,我的耳边传来了接连不 断的吵闹声,这样的噪音让我无法继续睡觉。我摘下耳机站起来,发现我后面几排的一个小男孩在不停 的哭闹。而他的父亲似乎已经习惯了这一切,并没有制止他。

那一刻我很生气,我走过去和小孩的父亲沟通,希望他的孩子能小声一点,然而这一切并没有什么用。 很快,小男孩又开始继续尖叫了。在公共场合大声说话是一种非常不礼貌的行为,这会给周边的人带来 <mark>巨大的困扰。</mark>年纪小并不是不遵守秩序的理由。

《投诉并得到满意结果》

Last month, I boarded the high-speed train to commute back to my hometown as I normally do. After I boarded the train, I kept getting hit by waves of exhaustion, so, I put on my earphones in an attempt to drown out the surrounding racket and soon after was able to fall asleep. However, I was rudely awakened by the ceaseless noise, which was so deafening it was utterly impossible for me to return to my slumber. Once I removed my headphones, I arose to discover a juvenile boy was bawling his eyes out a few rows behind me. His father seemed inured to the situation and therefore did nothing to quell the boy's crying.

I became enraged by his apathy at that moment. So, I ventured up to the father to make my feeling's plain, anticipating that the child could lower his voice and cease his infernal wailing. Unfortunately, my words fell on deaf ears. The little boy resumed his squealing after a brief pause. Therefore, I had to complain to the father a second time, who apologized profusely and then departed from the seat with his little boy. After which, the carriage fell into a deep silence.

It was not a particularly simple task to complain during this trip. After all, I had to confront the father twice before I could resolve the noise issue. Having one's sleep disturbed is a very irritating occurrence. Fortunately, the father was a reasonable man, and ultimately showed courtesy in his response.

I don't think it was easy to complain this time. After all, I had to talk to him twice before I could solve the problem. Being woken up from sleep is very annoying. Fortunately, his father was reasonable, and the results were good. I am of the opinion that it is a disgrace to make a racket in public as it affects and offends all the people nearby. But more often than not, many people persist in disturbing the peace and do so with abandon.

中文思路:

上个月,我像往常一样坐高铁回老家。上车之后,虽然周围很吵,但我实在是太困了,我找到座位后我 戴上耳机就开始睡觉。不知道睡了多久,我的耳边传来了接连不断的吵闹声,这样的噪音让我无法继续 睡觉。我摘下耳机站起来,发现我后面几排的一个小男孩在不停的哭闹。而他的父亲似乎已经习惯了这 一切,并没有制止他。

那一刻我很生气,我走过去和小孩的父亲沟通,希望他的孩子能小声一点,然而这一切并没有什么用。 不到十分钟,小男孩又开始继续尖叫了。我只能继续和小孩的父亲抱怨,这个男人向我表示了抱歉,然 后就带着小男孩离开了座位。他走后车厢立刻安静了下来。

我认为这次抱怨的经历并不容易,毕竟我沟通了两次才得到解决。睡觉被吵醒是一件很让人暴躁的事。 幸运的是结果还算令我满意,我遇到了一位讲道理的父亲。在公共场合大声说话是一种非常不礼貌的行 为,这会给周边的人带来巨大的困扰。但很多时候,很多制造噪音的人并不认为自己有错。

《收到想要的东西》

Describe a time when someone gave you something that you really wanted. Some instructions you can follow: Who this person was What this person gave you Why you wanted this thing And explain how you felt when you got this thing.

Last month, I boarded the high-speed train to commute back to my hometown as I normally do. During the journey, a stranger gave me a pair of earplugs which I really needed. I was very grateful for this gesture.

After I boarded the train, I put on my sleeping-mask and soon fell asleep. However, I was rudely awakened by the ceaseless noise, which was so deafening it was utterly impossible for me to return to my slumber. I arose to discover a juvenile boy was bawling his eyes out a few rows behind me. His father seemed inured to the situation and therefore did nothing to quell the boy's crying. In the moment, I became enraged by his apathy. So, I ventured up to the father to make my feelings plain, anticipating that the child would lower his voice and cease his infernal wailing. Unfortunately, my words fell on deaf ears.

The passenger sitting next to me seemed to share my frustrations. She told me that she often encountered situations such as this, and thus always carried earplugs with her. She then offered me a pair of them, which was something I needed very much at that moment. I was very grateful to her and thanked her profusely. The world then fell quiet after I put them on.

I am always surprised by the kindness of strangers because I am so used to living in an indifferent society. In our country, our parents have been consistently telling us not to trust strangers since early childhood. But I believe such assumptions can lead to an unhealthy society. We should always maintain goodwill towards others and lend a helping hand when others need it.

中文思路:

<mark>上个月,我像往常一样坐高铁回老家的时候</mark>,我身边的陌生人给了我一副耳塞,对此我非常感恩。

在我上车后,我带上眼罩就开始睡觉。不知道睡了多久,我的耳边传来了接连不断的吵闹声,这样的噪 音让我无法继续睡觉。原来是我后面几排的一个小男孩在不停的哭闹。而他的父亲似乎已经习惯了这一 切,并没有制止他。那一刻我很生气,我走过去和小孩的父亲沟通,希望他的孩子能小声一点,然而这 一切并没有什么用。

坐在我隔壁的旅客似乎看出了我的怒意。她告诉我她也经常遇到这种事情,所以她每次都给自己准备了 耳塞。说完她就给了我一副耳塞。这是我此刻很需要的物品,我非常感激她,连声跟她道谢。戴上耳塞 后我感觉世界都安静了。

来自陌生人的善意让我很惊讶。因为我已经习惯生活在一个冷漠的社会。在我们国家,父母从小就教育 我们不要轻易相信陌生人。但我认为这样的教育方式以及这样的社会是不健康的。我们应该始终保持对 他人的善意,在别人需要的时候伸出援手。

(三) 看美剧

06-07: 一个享受的生活习惯 & 年轻时的空闲活动

Describe a routine you have in your life that you	Describe an activity you enjoyed doing in your free
enjoy.	time when you were younger.
Some instructions you can follow:	Some instructions you can follow:
What the routine is	What activity you did
When and why you started to follow this routine	Who you did it with
How easy it is to follow	Where you did this activity
And explain why you enjoy having this routine in	And explain why you enjoyed doing this activity in
your daily life.	your free time when you were younger.

《一个享受的生活习惯》

Watching American dramas has been an entertaining hobby of mine that I have pursued ever since I was in high school. I have done it so frequently I would argue it is a routine of mine that I have followed for a considerable length of time. I enjoy watching American dramas because they are typically hilarious, state of the art, and fast-paced. But that's not all – I can also expose myself to colloquial phrases and idioms of the English language.

I find the act of following this routine easy to complete because it is a soothing and entertaining activity rather than the stress and drudgery of studying tasks. I am a creature of habit, and I like to watch American dramas on my laptop in my dormitory each day during some alone time. My first drama of choice was "Friends", after which I stumbled upon "The Big Bang Theory".

Initially, I was dependent upon Chinese subtitles to comprehend the shows. Without them I was clueless as to what they were talking about. Later, I began to follow and grasp much of the dialogue. I was utterly astonished to discover that I had made substantial progress in my comprehension of English. After which, I started to think of the activity as a form of education and began to note down English words and conversations I had picked up from these dramas. This activity of watching American dramas has become an indispensable tool for me to expand my vocabulary and put my listening skills to the test.

I can say without a doubt that my aptitude for English has greatly improved by sticking to this routine. Watching American dramas is beneficial to me as it allows me to adapt to the English environment. Since it is my intention to study abroad, I feel so thankful I have the opportunity to condition myself to the environment ahead of time.

中文思路:

<mark>我从高中开始,就很喜欢看美剧。</mark>这个习惯已经维持了好多年了。<mark>这不单单是因为美剧通常都制作精良,</mark> 剧情紧凑有趣,而且我也能从中学习很多日常英语用语。

遵循这个习惯对我来说非常容易,因为看美剧对我来说完全不是任务,而是一种放松和享受。<mark>一般我都</mark> <mark>会在宿舍用我的笔记本电脑独自看美剧。我以前经常看老友记,后来一直在看生活大爆炸。</mark>

其实一开始我需要对着中文字幕来看美剧,不然我不太能听懂里面的台词。后来,我逐渐能听懂电视剧 里面的一些对话。我惊喜地发现看美剧能帮助我学英语。之后我都把里面的一些英语单词和对话摘抄下 来,纯当是积累词汇和锻炼听力。 通过把看美剧当做日常习惯,我的因此提高了英语能力,<mark>这对我以后的出国留学生活是非常有帮助的。</mark> 相当于提前让我适应了外国的语言环境。

《年轻时的空闲活动》

Watching American dramas has been an entertaining hobby of mine that I have pursued ever since I was in high school. I enjoy watching American dramas because they are typically hilarious, state of the art, and fast-paced. But that's not all – I can also expose myself to colloquial phrases and idioms of the English language.

I am a creature of habit, and I like to watch American dramas on my laptop in my dormitory each day during some alone time. My first drama of choice was "Friends", after which I stumbled upon "The Big Bang Theory".

Initially, I was dependent upon Chinese subtitles to comprehend the shows. Without them I was clueless as to what they were talking about. Later, I began to follow and grasp much of the dialogue. I was utterly astonished to discover that I had made substantial progress in my comprehension of English. After which, I started to think of the activity as a form of education and began to note down English words and conversations I had picked up from these dramas. This activity of watching American dramas has become an indispensable tool for me to expand my vocabulary and put my listening skills to the test.

During my time in high school, I often felt assailed by insurmountable pressure. More often than not, I had mountains of homework I needed to complete as well as endless exams. I find watching American TV series brings me much needed solace and relaxation, I frequently burst into fits of laughter on account of their humorous plots. Moreover, I think this language immersion will be very beneficial for my future study abroad.

中文思路:

<mark>我从高中开始,就很喜欢看美剧。这不单单是因为美剧通常都制作精良,剧情紧凑有趣,而且我也能从</mark> 中学习很多日常英语用语。

一般我都会在宿舍用我的笔记本电脑独自看美剧。我以前经常看老友记,后来一直在看生活大爆炸。

其实一开始我需要对着中文字幕来看美剧,不然我不太能听懂里面的台词。后来,我逐渐能听懂电视剧 里面的一些对话。我惊喜地发现看美剧能帮助我学英语。之后我都把里面的一些英语单词和对话摘抄下 来,纯当是积累词汇和锻炼听力。

高中的时候,我的学业压力很重。大多数时间,我面对的都是堆积如山的作业和不断的考试。看美剧是 我最放松的时刻,我经常被电视剧中有趣的人物逗的哈哈大笑。这项活动不仅能舒缓我的压力,还在不 知不觉中帮我提高了英语水平。<mark>这对我以后的出国留学生活是非常有帮助的。</mark>

(四)做PPT

08-09: 以后想学习的事情 & 教朋友或亲戚的时刻

Describe something you would like to study in the	Describe a time when you were teaching a friend or
future.	a relative to do something.
Some instructions you can follow:	Some instructions you can follow:
What you would like to study	Who you taught
Where you would like to study	What you taught him/her to do
How easy or difficult it would be to study this	How easy it was to teach him/her
And explain why you would like to study this in the	And explain how you felt about teaching this
future.	friend/relative.

《以后想学习的事情》

How to design slides for a presentation, specifically the skills required to produce a distinct and exceptional slideshow through Powerpoint is a technique I desire to study in the future.

Not too long ago I attempted the feat myself, endeavoring to self-educate through reading books on the technique to design high quality slides. Unfortunately, I failed to produce any piece of work to my satisfaction. It then dawned upon me that it would be necessary for me to acquire professional tutoring by taking a course from a trusted teaching service. I decided that Bilibili, a video platform, would be an excellent place to start since I know there are a whole host of tutorials and learning materials available on that site. I sincerely hope that I am able to discover the perfect course suited to my needs, free or paid, in the future.

It goes without saying that anyone can put together a few slides, however designing and curating an excellent and captivating slide show is not a feat to be taken lightly. My own presentations are considerably low-quality from being brief and due to my focus on aesthetically pleasing slides rather than effective and informative ones. An outstanding slide requires a significant level of design and software expertise, similar to designing a cover or a poster. Moreover, a wide skill set is required as different occasions call for different styles of slides.

I would argue that producing an effective slide is a very practical skill. In school, and in the workplace, you could make the case that it is an essential and indispensable skill. If you possess the talent to design a unique presentation, you are likely to excel in your personal presentation at the end of the term. In today's workplace, the skillset and aptitude to utilize slides to produce a presentation has superseded communication and interpersonal skills as the most likely skill to help you get a raise.

中文思路:

如何制作 PTT 演示文稿,是我以后非常想学习的事情。确切的说,是做出一份与众不同的,优秀的 ppt。

我曾经试过自己看书摸索如何制作 PPT 演示文稿。但是没有明显的效果,我做出的成品总是无法让自己满意。这让我认识到我需要一些课程来帮助我学习。例如 B 站就是一个非常好的视频网站,我知道里面有很多 PPT 的教学视频。未来我希望在上面找到适合我的免费亦或者收费的教学课程来学习。

做 ppt 不是一件困难的事,但是做出优秀的 ppt 却很难。</mark>比如我做的演示文稿就无法做到美观和与众不 同。一份优秀的 ppt 需要很多设计和美术方面的知识。比如设计封面或者设计海报。不同的场合其实需 要不同种类的 ppt。

我认为做 ppt 是一项非常实用的技能。不管是在学校还是在职场,这几乎是一项必备技能。如果你能做 出与众不同的 ppt,很可能在期末的个人展示中取得好成绩。在当今职场上,会做 PPT 的能力已经远超 英语能力和社交技巧,成为最能帮你涨工资的技能。

《教朋友或亲戚的时刻》

A short while ago, I instructed my friend Anna on the technique to prepare a slide though PowerPoint. To be precise, I edified her on the skills required to produce a distinct and exceptional slideshow.

I have cultivated an interest in art and comics ever since early childhood. Despite my lack of any formal education in artistic practices, I possess a sensitivity for color and design. From the dawning of my freshman year, I commenced a process of self-education to discover the best method for designing PowerPoint slides. During my spare time, I would design some templates by myself. I would argue that this work bears many similarities to the process of painting.

It is not the most challenging task to educate Anna on how to produce a handful of slides, however designing and curating an excellent and captivating slide show is not a feat to be taken lightly. An outstanding slide requires a significant level of design and software expertise, similar to designing a cover or a poster. Moreover, a wide skill set is required as different occasions call for different styles of slides.

Now Anna has made substantial progress in designing slides which I am very proud of. I would argue that producing an effective slide is a very practical skill. In school, and in the workplace, you could make the case that it is an essential and indispensable skill. If you possess the talent to design a unique presentation, you are likely to excel in your personal presentation at the end of the term. In today's workplace, the skillset and aptitude to utilize slides to produce a presentation has superseded communication and interpersonal skills as the most likely skill to help you get a raise.

中文思路:

不久前,我曾经教我的朋友 anna 使用 PPT 软件。确切的说,是做出一份与众不同的,优秀的 ppt。

我从小就很喜欢美术和漫画,虽然不是美术专业的学生,但是所以对色彩和设计方面的东西比较敏感。 从大一开始,我开始自学 PPT 的制作。有空的时候我就会自己设计 ppt 的模板,我觉得这项工作和绘画 有很多共同之处。

教 anna 做 ppt 不是一件困难的事,但是做出优秀的 ppt 却很难。一份优秀的 ppt 需要很多设计和美术方 面的知识。比如设计封面或者设计海报。不同的场合其实需要不同种类的 ppt。

现在 anna 做的 ppt 已经有了很大进步,对此我很自豪。我认为做 ppt 是一项非常实用的技能。不管是在 学校还是在职场,这几乎是一项必备技能。如果你能做出与众不同的 ppt,很可能在期末的个人展示中 取得好成绩。在当今职场上,会做 PPT 的能力已经远超英语能力和社交技巧,成为最能帮你涨工资的 技能。

10: 常用网站

Describe a website that you use regularly. Some instructions you can follow: What the website is How often you use it How you found out about this website And explain why you use this website regularly.

I am a frequent user of the popular website Gaoding.com. It is a website that provides its users with templates and images for producing PowerPoint slides.

I once endeavored to self-educate through reading books on the technique to design high quality slides. Unfortunately, I failed to produce any piece of work to my satisfaction. It was not until my roommate introduced me to this handy website that I was able to produce high quality PowerPoint presentations, I found it extremely useful. There is a vast sum of material hosted on the site and all users can download anything for free from it. As a beginner the process is simple, I am only required to select a suitable template, input words and data, and then I receive an appealing and appropriate slide.

In school, and in the workplace, you could make the case that it is an essential and indispensable skill. It goes without saying that anyone can put together a few slides, however designing and curating an excellent and captivating slide show is not a feat to be taken lightly. An outstanding slide requires a significant level of design and software expertise, similar to designing a cover or a poster. Moreover, a wide skill set is required as different occasions call for different styles of slides.

This website offers a whole host of templates and ever since I discovered this website, my slides have been praised and commended by my teachers and classmates. Every time I need to design a slide, I decide to log in to the website to search for appropriate templates. These days I practically log in several times per month because it's super convenient to use the templates to design my own slides.

中文思路:

Gaoding.com 是我时常会使用的一个网站。这是一个提供模板和图片的网站,

一开始,我曾经试过自己看书摸索如何制作 PPT 演示文稿。但是没有明显的效果,我做出的成品总是 无法让自己满意。 直到我的舍友介绍了这个网站给我,使用后我发现它确实很好用。网站上有非常多免 费的模板和图片。对于我一个初学者来说,我只需要挑选好适合的模板,然后把文字和数据录入,这样 我就能得到一份非常美观的 PPT。

不管是在学校还是在职场,做 PPT 几乎是一项必备技能。做 ppt 不是一件困难的事,但是做出优秀的 ppt 却很难。一份优秀的 ppt 需要很多设计和美术方面的知识。比如设计封面或者设计海报。不同的场 合其实需要不同种类的 ppt。</mark>这个网站给我提供了很多可选择的 ppt 素材和模板,自从发现了这个网站, 我做的 ppt 经常得到老师和同学的夸赞。

现在,每当我需要做 PPT 的时候,我都会登录这个网址来寻找素材和模板。基本上我每个月都会登录 几次,利用这个网站的模板制作自己的 PPT 实在是太方便了。

(五) 学做饭

11-12: 不寻常的一顿饭 & 跟别人一起做事的经历

Describe a time when you had an unusual meal.	Describe something you did with one or more
Some instructions you can follow:	people.
When you had this meal	Some instructions you can follow:
Who was with you	What you did
Where you had this meal	Who you did it with
And explain what was unusual about this meal.	How long it took
	And explain how you felt about doing something
	with one or more people.

《不寻常的一顿饭》

I consider myself to be a foody, someone with an enthusiasm for culinary matters, as long as it is delicious! If I was to speak on the topic of my most special meal, there is nothing more appropriate to discuss than my first experience of cooking a meal by myself.

On my birthday this year, my closest companion Anna and I visited a brilliant culinary training store called ABC cooking. While we were at the store, Anna and I had the opportunity to prepare a dish for ourselves. Since we were both utter novices when it comes to cooking, we decided to begin with omurice, which was the least complicated dish on offer. During the process, there was a professional instructor who guided us through the steps and methods to create the perfect dish. She instructed us on the techniques required to cook perfect rice and fry an egg to perfection. We were also given guidance on some foundational cooking knowledge, such as what to consider when deciding upon suitable meats for a dish and how a chef controls the fire during cooking. I followed her instructions to the letter, step by step, and finally, I prepared a mouth watering curry omurice in about two hours.

Anna and I tasted our dishes which we made with our own hands during the class. I have to say, it was the finest omurice I had ever tasted. Furthermore, the entire experience made it one of the most special meals I have had. It felt particularly meaningful to cook a meal for myself on my birthday. It was like an act of self-love. Ever since that day, I have fostered an interest in cooking. If I find a spare few hours in the future, I will join a similar cooking course again.

<mark>我是个非常喜欢美食的人,一切好吃的东西都是我的最爱。</mark>要说最特殊的一顿饭,我想谈谈自己做的一 顿饭。

今年我过生日的时候,我的好朋友 anna 一起去了一家很棒的厨艺体验馆,叫做 ABC cooking。在店里, 我和 anna 将有机会制作一款完全属于自己的料理。因为没有基础,我们选择了最简单的蛋包饭。制作 过程中,有一位专业的老师全程指导我们。她告诉我如何蒸米饭,如何煎鸡蛋。我还学到了一些专业知 识,比如怎么选择合适的肉类,煎肉的时候如何控制火力。我跟着老师一步一步操作,大约两个小时的 时间,我做出了一款超完美的咖喱蛋包饭。

做完之后我和 anna 在那里享受了自己亲手制作的美味。我不得不说这是我吃过最好吃的蛋包饭。<mark>我认</mark> 为这是最特别的一顿饭。能在生日的时候亲手给自己做顿饭,是一件很有意义的事。我似乎有点爱上做 饭了。如果以后有时间,我还会再次参加类似的课程。

《跟别人一起做事的经历》

I consider myself to be a foody, someone with an enthusiasm for culinary matters, as long as it is delicious!

On my birthday this year, my closest companion Anna and I visited a brilliant culinary training store called ABC cooking. While we were at the store, Anna and I had the opportunity to prepare a dish for ourselves. Since we were both utter novices when it came to cooking, we decided to begin with omurice, which was the least complicated dish on offer. During the process, there was a professional instructor who guided us through the steps and methods to create the perfect dish. She instructed us on the techniques required to cook flawless rice and fry an egg to perfection. We were also given guidance on some foundational cooking knowledge, such as what to consider when deciding upon suitable meats for a dish and how a chef retains control over the heat during cooking. I followed her instructions to the letter, step by step, and finally, we prepared a mouthwatering curry omurice in about two hours.

It was a pleasure to cook a meal with Anna. I was responsible for cutting the meat and vegetables while she took care of the cooking. She is an excellent partner and we worked like a team. I must say that it was the best omurice I had ever tasted. I believe I am starting to become interested in cooking and would like to attend more courses if Anna comes too.

中文思路:

我是个非常喜欢美食的人,一切好吃的东西都是我的最爱。

今年我过生日的时候,我的好朋友 anna 一起去了一家很棒的厨艺体验馆,叫做 ABC cooking。在店里, 我和 anna 将有机会制作一款完全属于自己的料理。因为没有基础,我们选择了最简单的蛋包饭。制作 过程中,有一位专业的老师全程指导我们。她告诉我如何蒸米饭,如何煎鸡蛋。我还学到了一些专业知 识,比如怎么选择合适的肉类,煎肉的时候如何控制火力。我跟着老师一步一步操作,大约两个小时的 时间,我做出了一款超完美的咖喱蛋包饭。

和 Anna 一起学做饭是一次非常棒的体验。过程中,我们两个一个切菜,一个炒菜,配合的非常完美。 我不得不说这是我吃过最好吃的蛋包饭。Anna 是一个非常好的搭档,我们合作地非常愉快。我似乎有 点爱上做饭了。如果 Anna 感兴趣的话,我想和她一起继续再次参加类似的课程。

(六) 渣渣辉

13-14: 难用的科技产品 & 不喜欢的广告

Describe a piece of technology that you find	Describe an advertisement you have seen that you
difficult to use.	did not like.
Some instructions you can follow:	Some instructions you can follow:
What you use it for	Where and when you saw this advertisement
When you got it	What it was for
How often you need to use it	What you could see in the advertisement
And explain why you find this piece of technology	And explain why you did not like it.
difficult to use.	

《难用的科技产品》

My laptop is an essential device that I would say gets daily use as I require it to complete my homework and surf the web. Unfortunately, due to a recent careless mistake on my part, there is a fundamental flaw in the operating system of my device which has turned using my laptop into a Herculean task.

I purchased the laptop immediately after arriving to university. It is without a doubt the most frequently used electronic device in my arsenal, I would go as far as saying it is indispensable. I can hardly live without it. I possess the laptop to use it to do homework, search for miscellaneous information, and while I relax to take the edge off I use it to play games and watch films.

I can remember as clear as day the moment my laptop was corrupted. I happened to be installing a necessary piece of software at the end of last year. During this procedure, several pieces of malware installed themselves onto my computer without my permission or knowledge. My laptop has run at a snail's pace ever since then and now it takes an eternity to load a webpage. All the while, advertisements plague me in the form of ceaseless pop ups from the moment I boot up my laptop. Its utterly frustrating as I can't find where to close them for the life of me. I have been driven to the brink of madness by it.

I don't think my laptop could be called "good to use" as it fails to taken even the slightest defensive actions against malware. I find it quite disturbing that this malware could be installed on to my laptop right under my nose. I must say, next time I will consider purchasing a Mac.

我每天都要使用我的笔记本电脑来完成作业和浏览网站。但不幸的是,前一段时间由于我的操作失误, 我的电脑变得非常难用。

这台电脑是我刚上大学的时候买的,它是我生活中使用最多的电子产品。我的生活几乎离不开它。不论 是写作业,查资料,还是玩游戏和看电视剧,这些事情都离不开电脑。

我清楚地记得那是去年年底的某一天,我一不小心在网上下载了一个软件。这个软件在未经我同意的情况下,给我的电脑安装了其他几个垃圾软件。从那以后我的电脑运行速度开始变得缓慢,打开一个网页都得等好几秒。于此同时,我每次开机都伴随着一堆的广告弹窗。更令人讨厌的是,我几乎都找不到关闭它们的地方。我几乎都被这电脑逼疯了!

我觉得我的电脑并不是一件好用的科技产品,它对于垃圾软件,没有任何的防御措施。我甚至不知道这 些软件是怎么安装到我的电脑上的,这是一件非常可怕的事。我想下一次,我会考虑换一部苹果电脑。

《不喜欢的广告》

I would speculate that a considerable number of people are familiar with this advertisement because it is so infamous. I for one utterly detest the advert.

I can remember as clear as day the moment my laptop was corrupted. I happened to be installing a necessary piece of software at the end of last year. During this procedure, several pieces of malware installed themselves onto my computer without my permission or knowledge. Since then, advertisements plague me in the form of ceaseless pop ups from the moment I boot up my laptop. The most common one is an advertisement of an online game, Tanwan Lanyue. Its slogan is always the same, "come and hit me if you think you are my best friend".

Its utterly frustrating as I can't find where to close them for the life of me. I have been driven to the brink of madness by it. I frequently click this ad by mistake and then I am sent to the webpage for this online game. There is no doubt that this is a malicious ploy by the game developers to gather more people into its userbase. However, this form of advertising is so wicked and frustrating.

I detest this ad with all my heart because it was installed on my computer without my permission. My laptop has run at a snail's pace ever since then and it had a detrimental effect on my study. In the end, I spent 50 Yuan to restore the system in a computer repair shop. After which, the ad has ceased to pop up incessantly on my computer anymore, and I must say I am overjoyed with this result.

中文思路:

我相信很多人都知道这条广告,因为它是在太著名,但是我非常不喜欢它。

我清楚地记得那是去年年底的某一天,我一不小心在网上下载了一个软件。这个软件在未经我同意的情况下,给我的电脑安装了其他几个垃圾软件。于此同时,我每次开机都伴随着一堆的广告弹窗。 最常见 就是一个叫做贪玩蓝月的游戏广告。每次广告语都是一句话"我是渣渣辉,是兄弟就来砍我"。

<mark>我几乎都被这广告逼疯了,因为我很难找到关闭它的地方。</mark>我一不小心就会点到这个广告,然后就进入 了这个游戏。估计这个游戏就是为了吸引更多人玩,所以到处打广告,而且是以恶意的形式打广告。

我非常讨厌这个广告。因为它是未经我允许就安装在我电脑里的。它让我的电脑运行速度变得很慢,严 重影响了我的学习效率。最终我花了 50 块钱去修电脑的那里还原了系统。于是这广告再也没在我电脑 中出现了,真是令人喜悦。

(七) 学游泳

15: 完成的骄傲事情

Describe something you achieved that you are proud of. Some instructions you can follow: What you achieved How you did it How difficult it was to do And explain why you are proud of this achievement.

During my youth, I made a very significant accomplishment by overcoming a considerable challenge, this filled me with pride. The accomplishment in question was learning to swim. If my memory serves me correctly, this occurred during my time in junior high school. My family was of the disposition that the art of swimming was an indispensable skill one shouldn't be without. Therefore, I was enrolled in beginner swimming lessons which took place during the summer vacation. To be quite frank with you, I had no interest in learning to swim during the holiday. If I had my own way, I would have passed my time shopping with my classmates or having a wild time at the amusement park. However, my parents enlisted me in the classes, therefore I had to learn.

It was not until after I had commenced the task of learning to swim that I discovered it was truly a trying task. I learned breaststroke, which is a rudimentary stroke in swimming. However, in the early days of my learning, I found it impossible to coordinate my arms and my legs. The result of this was that I could only stroke with my arms without kicking my legs, or the reverse, I could only kick with my legs while failing to stroke with my arms. It may sound curious, but due to this it quickly dawned on me that I did not have the innate knack for swimming. Fortunately, through determination and unending practice, I succeeded in being taught proper breaststroke before the end of the class. Despite the fact that I did not have the skills to swim vast distances, I nevertheless could swim! I felt overjoyed that I could achieve something challenging due to my perseverance.

中文思路:

在我小时候,我完成了一件很困难的,让我自豪的事情,那就是学游泳。如果我没记错的话,那是发生 在我初中的时候。我的家里人认为学游泳是一件很有用而且很重要的事情,所以他们在暑假的时候给我 报了一个学游泳的班级,让我去学游泳。 其实说实话,我并不想在假期里去学游泳。我想跟我的同学去 逛街,去游乐园玩。但是爸妈已经给我报名了,我不得不去学。

直到我开始学游泳,我才发现学游泳竟然是一件非常困难的事情。我学的是蛙泳,是游泳姿势里面相对 简单的一项。但在刚开始学的时候,我无论如何都不能做到手脚协调,也就是说,我只能在保持脚不动 的情况下,用手划水,或者说在保持手不动的情况下,用脚划水。这听起来是一件奇怪的事情,但我的 确在学习游泳方面没有一点天赋。

幸运的是,通过不断地练习,我终于在课程结束前学会了蛙泳。虽然我并不能游很长的距离,但我毕竟 是掌握了一项求生技能。能够通过自己的努力,完成一件最初看起来很困难的事。我还是感到很欣慰的。

16: 别人的好消息

Describe a time when you heard good news about someone you know well. Some instructions you can follow: Who the person is What the good news was When and how you heard the good news And explain how you felt when you heard the good news about this person.

I will never forget the moment when I was quite young, perhaps while I was still attending primary school, that my sister shared with me a piece of good news. She had successfully learned the art of swimming. My family was of the disposition that the art of swimming was an indispensable skill one shouldn't be without. Therefore, my sister was enrolled in beginner swimming lessons which took place during the summer vacation.

Subsequently after she enrolled in the swimming class, she would come to me with her grievances and objections over the difficulty of the task at hand. She learned breaststroke, which is a rudimentary stroke in swimming. However, in the early days of her learning, she found it impossible to coordinate her arms and her legs. The result of this was that she could only stroke with her arms without kicking her legs, or the reverse, she could only kick with her legs while failing to stroke with her arms. It may sound curious, but due to this it quickly dawned on her that she did not have the innate knack for swimming.

It wasn't until she had completed the course of swimming lessons that my sister returned home triumphant and declared to me with joy that she had finally learned to swim. Not only that, but she also invited me to attend the swimming pool the following day to witness her swimming. The excellent news really raised my spirits for a long time. Despite the fact that she did not have the skills to swim vast distances, she nevertheless could swim! I felt overjoyed to witness my sister achieve something challenging due to her perseverance.

中文思路:

我记得在我年轻的时候,大概是上初中时,我妹妹告诉了我一个好消息,那就是她学会游泳了。<mark>我的家</mark> <mark>里人认为学游泳是一件很有用而且很重要的事情,所以他们在暑假的时候给我妹妹报了一个学游泳的班</mark> 级,让她去学游泳。

游泳班开课以后,妹妹每天回家都会抱怨学<mark>游泳是一件非常困难的事情。她学的是蛙泳,是游泳姿势里</mark> 面相对简单的一项。但在刚开始学的时候,她无论如何都不能做到手脚协调,这听起来是一件奇怪的事 情,但我妹妹的确在学习游泳方面没有一点天赋。

直到游泳班快结束的时候,妹妹某天下午回家后兴高采烈的告诉我,她终于学会游泳了。不仅如此,她 还邀请我明天去游泳馆看看她的学习成果。这个好消息真的让我高兴了很久。<mark>虽然她并不能游很长的距</mark> 离,但她毕竟是掌握了一项求生技能。看着自己的妹妹通过自己的努力,完成一件最初看起来很困难的 事。我还是感到很欣慰的。

(八) 男/女朋友

17-18: 喜欢一起工作/学习的人 & 派对里交谈甚欢的人

Describe a person who you enjoyed working or	Describe a person who you enjoyed talking to at a
studying with.	party.
Some instructions you can follow:	Some instructions you can follow:
Who this person is	Who the person was
How long you worked or studied together	When and where the party was
What work or studies you did together	What you talked about
And explain why you enjoyed working or studying	And explain why you enjoyed talking to this person
with this person.	at the party.

《喜欢一起工作/学习的人》

It is a common occurrence for my girlfriend and I to frequent the library together to study. I must admit, she is a first-rate study buddy. We happened to bump into each other at a party. She is stunning and always the life of the party. I fell in love with her the moment I laid my eyes upon her. We exchanged our WeChat details at the party, then only a short while after we became an item.

At any opportune moment, we will visit the library to do our research and revise together. We must have been doing this for at least a year at this point. Most commonly, we attend the library after our classes or when we find ourselves unoccupied. In contrast to the conventions of most couples I know, we sit together, however we don't converse or discuss things very often. The reason for this is that we believe frequent chatter has a detrimental effect on our learning efficiency. It is only in the rare instances that I face a problem I consider to be insurmountable on my own, that I will ask her for her assistance. I must admit, I am quite the fan of this method of learning.

All the while, we go out to dinner together in the evenings or kill some time shopping if we get a spare hour or so. It is always a pleasure to shoot the breeze with her because there is always an enormous smile planted right on her face. The slightest humorous remark or joyful moment will send her into fits of laughter for a long time. Every minute I have spent with her has been precious and filled with happiness. She is a ray of sunshine in my life and fills each second with happiness during my hours of study and my daily life. I enjoy my time studying with her and like sharing my life with her very much.

中文思路:

我和我的女朋友经常一起去图书馆学习,她是一个非常好的学习伙伴。<mark>我和她是在一个聚会上认识的。</mark> 她很漂亮,很开朗,我见到她的第一眼就喜欢上了她。</mark>我们在聚会上交换了联系方式,后来我们就成为 了男女朋友。

有空的时候,我们会一起去图书馆学习。至今大概有一年的时间了。我们一般会在课余的时间去,比如 下课后,或者没有课的空闲时间。跟我认识的其他情侣不一样,我们会坐在一起,但不会经常聊天或者 讨论问题。因为一直说话会影响对方的学习效率。只有当我遇到自己解决不了的问题时,我才会询问她 的意见。说实话,我很享受这样的学习方式。 同时,我们空闲的时间里会一起去吃饭和逛街。<mark>跟她聊天总是很开心,因为她的笑容很灿烂。一丁点开</mark> <mark>心的事情都能把她开心好久。跟她度过的每分每秒都是令人愉快的。在紧张的学习生活之余,她给我带</mark> <mark>来了很多快乐,</mark>我很喜欢跟她一起学习和生活。

《派对上交谈甚欢的人》

My girlfriend and I happened to bump into each other at a party. This occurred on the day some of my companions and I attended a barbecue party in a garden adjacent to our college. If my memory serves me correctly, this occurred around a year ago. She is stunning and always the life of the party. I fell in love with her the moment I laid my eyes upon her.

It just happened to be my good fortune that I was sat beside her during the barbecue, which gave us plenty of opportunity to converse. Initially, I was somewhat constrained and inhibited because chatting with a beautiful girl has always made me apprehensive. However, I gradually discovered that we had much common ground and shared quite a few interests. We both adored gourmet cuisine and so I confided in her several of my favorite restaurants. In addition, Anna is fond of pets and my family happen to have a pet dog. We felt an affinity due to our shared interests and this quickly built bridges between us.

We were shooting the breeze after the party. I found her a very bright and outgoing girl. It is always a pleasure to converse with her because there is always an enormous smile planted right on her face. The slightest humorous remark or joyful moment will send her into fits of laughter for a long time. Every minute I spent with her was a delight. She is a ray of sunshine in my life and fills each second with happiness during my free time and in my daily life. I must say, I feel like the luckiest man alive knowing she is my girlfriend.

中文思路:

<mark>我和我的女朋友是在一个聚会上认识的。</mark>大概是一年多以前,我和几个同学约着一起去我们学校附近的 公园烧烤。这次聚会让我认识了我的女朋友 Anna。<mark>她很漂亮,很开朗,我见到她的第一眼就喜欢上了</mark> <mark>她。</mark>

烧烤的时候我恰巧就坐在她隔壁,于是我们有了很多交流的机会。一开始我还有点拘束,因为跟美女聊 天让我有点紧张。但慢慢的我发现,而且我们之间有非常多的共同话题。我们都喜欢美食,我给她分享 了好几家我喜欢的餐厅。另外, anna 喜欢宠物,而我家正好养了一条狗,共同的爱好让我们迅速熟悉起 来。

吃完饭后的空闲时间,我们两个一直在聊天。Anna 是个性格很好的女孩,跟她聊天总是很开心,因为 她的笑容很灿烂。一丁点开心的事情都能把她开心好久。</mark>我想没有人会不喜欢开朗又漂亮的女孩子,聚 会上<mark>跟她度过的每分每秒都是令人愉快的。在紧张的学习生活之余,她给我带来了很多快乐,我很高兴</mark> 她能成为我的女朋友。

(单独话题)

19: 家里舒服的某处地方

Describe the part of your home where you most enjoy relaxing. Some instructions you can follow: What part of your home this is When you usually relax there How you relax there And explain why you find this part of your home a good place to relax in.

When most people consider the most relaxing location at home, a common answer would be the bedroom. But here, I would have to disagree with the majority and say my favorite space to relax is the balcony. When we first moved into this house, it was my mother's desire that the balcony should be boarded up and closed, however I strongly opposed this plan. I was already of the opinion that there is nothing more comfortable than having access to a spacious balcony in one's own home.

When I return home during the weekend, I relish the moments I spend relaxing upon the balcony. I filled the balcony with flora and foliage, including not only common small potted plants but even large and exotic plants of the tropical variety. I must say, it is a lengthy chore to water all the plants and prune them of their dry leaves. I even installed a swing suspended from the roof of the balcony and there are seldom things more pleasant than reclining on the swing and savoring an afternoon tea when the weather is favorable.

In addition to its being a place for respite and relaxation, the balcony also serves as an excellent location for partying and festivities with my companions. The balcony at my home is large and spacious. I am never filled with dread about the lampblack on the grass or the incessant buzzing and harassment of mosquitoes while barbecuing upon the balcony. It is a fresh and remarkable experience.

I believe that the balcony in an excellent location to relax most likely due to all the pleasant memories I have fostered in this place. At my desk, I am confronted by the headache of an onslaught of homework and papers. In contrast, the memories of my balcony such as planting flowers, savoring afternoon tea, and barbecuing with my companions are all moments I cherish.

中文思路:

说到家里最放松的地方,大多数人应该会喜欢卧室,而我最喜欢的却是家里的阳台。当我们刚搬进这件 房子的时候,我妈妈曾经想把阳台封闭起来,这遭到了我的强烈反对。没有什么比一个宽敞的大阳台更 舒服的地方了。

当我周末回到家,我很喜欢把时间都浪费在阳台上。我在阳台上种了很多植物。不仅有常见的小盆栽, 还有一些大型的热带植物。给它们浇水并且除掉干枯的叶子,这需要很长一段时间。我甚至在阳台的屋 顶上装了一个秋千。在天气好的时候,没有什么比坐在秋千上享受一顿下午茶更惬意的事情了。

阳台除了是我放松休息的地方,更是我和朋友聚会的好选择。我们家的阳台很大,拥有足够的空间。在 阳台烧烤既不用考虑烤肉的油烟,还不用担心草地上的蚊虫。这是一种新奇又有趣的体验。

我认为我们家的阳台是个放松的好地方,大概率是因为我在这里留下的都是开心的回忆。在书桌前,我 不得不面对令人头痛的作业和论文。而种花,下午茶,烧烤都是很快乐的事。

20: 喜欢的演员

Describe an actor who you admire for playing a particular character in a film/movie. Some instructions you can follow: Who the actor is Where and when you watched this person What kind of character this person played And explain why you admire the actor for playing this character in a film/movie.

Benedict Cumberbatch is a world renown actor and I adore the role he performed in the film *Sherlock*. If my memory serves me correctly, I was first recommended this compelling film by my roommate Anna. My initial viewing of the production occurred two years prior, I screened the production on my laptop and watched it online during some time off in my dormitory.

The film *Sherlock* is an adaptation of the internationally acclaimed novel series, *Sherlock Holmes*. In this series of novels, Sherlock and his companion Doctor Watson are intrepid and cunning detectives who safeguard England from malevolent and wicked schemes. There most significant role is the protection of the general populace from the mastermind and evil genius of Professor Moriarty. The battles of wits between the titular hero and the villain are fascinating and highly entertaining as both characters are men of extraordinary intellect.

Benedict Cumberbatch's depiction of Sherlock in the film is utterly delightful and captivating. His proficiency to swiftly deduce an individual's background and recent activities through the most minute of details is truly enthralling. The film is also hair-raising, as the perpetrator is seldom who you'd expect and the endings are always a mystery full of sudden twists. However, despite the confounding nature of the cases, Sherlock always manages to unearth the truth and unravel the crime.

In my opinion, among the various TV series and movie adaptations of "Sherlock Holmes," Cumberbatch's portrayal is the most engaging and of the finest quality.

中文翻译:

康伯巴奇是我非常喜欢的一名演员,我非常喜欢他在《Sherlock》中扮演的 Sherlock Holmes。如果我没记错的话,应该是我舍友 Anna 给我推荐的这部电影。我是大概两年前在宿舍用笔记本电脑看的。

《Sherlock》这部电影是小说《福尔摩斯》改编的。Sherlock 和他的伙伴华生是著名的侦探,他们保护 英国免遭罪恶。最重要的是,它们保护人们免受超级恶棍 Moriarti 博士的伤害。Sherlock 和莫里亚蒂之间的智慧之战非常有趣,因为他们都是天才。

在电影里,康伯巴奇扮演的 Sherlock 非常的帅气和聪明。他最吸引我的一点是他能在几秒钟内通过一个人的细枝末节来准确分析出他的家庭背景和最近做过的事情。于此同时,这部电影的好看之处也在于罪犯从来都不是观众想象中的那个人,总有出人意料的结局出现。但夏洛克总能在最后找到凶手!

其实《福尔摩斯》这部小说有很多个电视剧和电影版本,但康伯巴奇的这一部电影是我认为最精彩最好 看的。

21: 见过的有趣老人

Describe an interesting old person you have met. Some instructions you can follow: How you met him/her Who the person is What kind of person he/she is And explain why you think this old person is interesting.

Back when we had graduated to the fourth grade, we were introduced to a new English teacher, Mike, who originated from Britain. He was old with a white beard. I thought he was an interesting character and was very fond of him.

Encountering Mike was actually the first time I had met a foreigner. His method of teaching was completely dissimilar from that of our former English teacher. As well as using the textbook, he enjoyed conversing with us in English, and frequently made utterly exaggerated facial expressions and gestures. Mike was the type of man who wore his heart on his sleeve. His face beamed when he was joyful. When he was puzzled, his eyes and eyebrows would scrunch together until they were almost closed! He was an incredibly enthusiastic person who often broke out into laughter. No matter what we said in class, he would always praise us unreservedly. What's more, he also spoke a small amount of Chinese. However, due to his strange accent, he repeatedly caused the class to burst into laughter.

Mike is without a doubt the most interesting senior I have ever encountered. Despite his age, he always seems full of energy. He teaches with passion and enthusiasm and makes various engrossing facial expressions just like a younger man. Other teachers are very serious and far less interesting than Mike. An engaging teacher can significantly stimulate students' desire to learn and help them to be more attentive in class.

中文思路:

小学四年级的时候,我们的英语课上多了一位新老师。他叫迈克,是一个英国人。他年纪很大,胡子都白了。我认为他是一个非常有趣的老师,我很喜欢他。

那是我第一次见外国人,他的教学方式和原本的英语老师完全不同。他没有讲课本上的内容,而是用英语和我们聊天,还经常做出一些非常夸张的表情和动作。我觉得他心情都写在了脸上,他高兴的时候会咧开嘴大笑,在感到困惑的时候,眼睛眉毛几乎都皱在一起了,非常与众不同。他是个非常乐观和爱笑的人,课堂上不管学生说了什么,他都会非常大声的表扬他。不仅如此,他还会说一点点中文,由于口音奇怪,常常会惹得同学们哈哈大笑。

Mike 绝对是我见过最有趣的老人。虽然他年纪很大了,但是我感觉他精力非常充沛。因为他总是充满 着激情和热情讲课。并且能像年轻人一样做出各种有趣的表情。其他的老师讲课都很严肃,远没有 Mike 有趣。有趣的老师能极大地激发起学生的学习欲望,学生在上课的时候也会更专注。

22: 迟到

Describe a time when you were late for something important Some instructions you can follow: When and where it happened What you were late for Why you were late And explain how you felt about being late for this important thing.

Not too long ago, I made a calamitous mistake which was to be late for the first day of my part-time job. But fortunately, I gained wisdom and experience from it.

I am employed as a part-time tutor for junior high school students in my spare time while I'm at university. I had made ample preparations to ensure I would perform superbly as a tutor, and I was eager to leave a good impression on both students and parents.

Although I attributed significant importance to this part-time job, I unexpectedly muddled the date of the part-time job and set my alarm clock incorrectly! On that morning, while I was sleeping like a dog, my roommate shook me awake and informed me the time was 9 o'clock. I immediately bolted up, snatched my bag and exited the house.

I had no time for breakfast and ran as fast as I could to the metro station. Since I was in such haste, I ended up entering the completely wrong subway! I felt incredibly foolish and was quite dismayed when I realized I would have to exit the carriage and find a subway going in the opposite direction. By the time I reached the student's home, I was half an hour late! Though the parents didn't blame me, I still felt ashamed and a sense of guilt.

After that day, I would confirm what activities I was engaged to do the following morning before sleeping and never depart in a rush so that I would never make such a horrendous mistake again.

中文思路:

不久前,我犯了一个灾难性的错误,我在工作的第一天迟到了。但幸运的是,我从中吸取了教训。

在大学期间,我利用课余时间为初中生做兼职家教。为了做好这份家教工作我看了很多书,我希望能给 学生和家长都留下一个好印象。这对我来说很重要。

虽然我很重视这份兼职,但是我竟然在兼职开始的第一天,糊涂地定错了闹钟的时间!那天早上,正当 我睡得迷迷糊糊的时候,我的舍友把我摇醒。告诉我现在已经是早上九点了。我立刻就清醒过来,随便 收拾了一下就出门了。

我顾不上吃早饭,并且一路跑到地铁站。因为太匆忙了,我最终乘坐了完全错误的地铁!我觉得自己非 常愚蠢,当我意识到我必须离开车厢去找另一个方向的地铁时,我感到非常沮丧。当我到达的时候,我 已经迟到了半个小时!虽然家长并没有怪我,但我觉得非常惭愧。从那以后,我每天睡前都会确认我第 二天需要做的事情,从不匆忙出门,这样我就不会再犯这样可怕的错误了。

23: 想短暂停留的城市

Describe a city you would like to visit for only a short time. Some instructions you can follow: Where the city is Who you would visit the city with What you would like to do there And explain why you would like to visit this city for only a short time.

When I consider the ideal location for a short getaway, Macau comes straight to the top of my mind. For as long as I can remember, Macau has been a hot site recommended in travel guides and social media. Therefore, it piqued my curiosity.

It is my intention to travel to the wonderful city with my boyfriend as a travelling companion whenever we find the time since we have never taken a long trip together as a couple. I cannot think of a more romantic act than to travel the world with the person I love. Furthermore, this has been one of my long-cherished dreams as well.

While technically it is considered a part of China, Macau is unusual and distinct from the other cities of China due to its unique culture and unconventional history. I long to gaze upon its exotic architecture, of course with the famed Ruins of St. Paul not to be missed. I intend to sample its delicious local delicacies. These include Portuguese cuisine with treats such as egg tarts which are surely not to be missed. And of utmost importance, I intend to capture copious amounts of fantastic photographs since the location is utterly picturesque and it is an excellent place to snap some shots in its metropolis.

It goes without saying, I wouldn't go for a long stay while in Macau. Three or four days should be more than enough time for a satisfying holiday. On the one hand, I may run out of interesting tasks and suffer from boredom if I overstay in such a small city. On the other hand, I can hardly afford the luxury of lingering for many days or even weeks on end in a location where the price of a hotel appears to be astronomical.

中文思路:

谈到一个我想短途旅行的城市,那无疑是澳门。很长的一段时间里,我经常在社交网站上看到有关澳门的推荐,这座城市非常吸引我。

我计划在有空的时候男朋友一起去。我和男朋友认识以来,从来没有一起出过远门。和自己喜欢的人一 起旅行是一件很浪漫的事,也是我一直以来的心愿。

澳门虽然属于中国,但和中国大陆的其他城市完全不一样。它有着自己独特的历史和文化。我想去看看 澳门充满异域风情的建筑,比如著名的大三巴广场。我还想去品尝当地特色的美味小吃,蛋挞和葡国菜 都是不能错过的美味。当然还有最重要的事,我想拍很多好看的照片,众多周知澳门是个非常适合拍照 的地方。

当然,我并不想在澳门呆很长一段时间。我认为三四天就足够了。一方面,澳门面积很小,长时间的旅 行我可能会感到无聊。另一方面,澳门似乎没有什么平价酒店。我的钱包不允许我长时间住在一家豪华 酒店里。

24: 开学的第一天

Describe something you remember about your first day at a new school. Some instructions you can follow: Where the it was What you remember well How you felt about your first day at the school And explain why you remember this about your first day at the new school.

The New Oriental school would not be described as a full-time school in the traditional sense, but rather as a renowned extracurricular English training institution. There was one just a stones throw from my family home when I was growing up. I recall that my mother registered me for its summer English course while I was in middle school. Initially, I was incredibly resistant to the proposition because I didn't believe studying was what summer vacation was for, I would much rather have spent it playing games at home or shopping instead.

To my astonishment, I discovered on the first day that New Oriental's teaching method was fascinating and at once I began enjoying attending the lessons. My memory fails me as to the name of the teacher, however, I will never forget the passion he demonstrated in the class. His particular teaching method was what compelled me the most. He would discuss with us his beliefs on the true nature of life and describe to us his experience of life and then combine this with English training. He could spend anywhere up to an hour chatting in this way during a two-hour-long class.

If a teacher can make it a joy to study, then it's hard to argue that they aren't doing an impeccable job. I was eager to listen and be immersed in his stories rather than studying from textbooks in his classes. This particular style of teaching made me feel relaxed while also enticing me to attend his class and listen diligently, from which I learned a lot unconsciously. I felt very astonished and elated on the first day of attending the New Oriental School and that is the reason why that day has always stuck in my mind.

中文思路:

新东方补习学校其实不是传统意义上的全日制学校,它是一间出名的课外英语培训机构。小时候我家附 近不远处就有一家。我记得那是在我初中的时候,我妈妈给我报了它的暑期英语课程。一开始我是不乐 意去上课的。因为我觉得暑假就不应该学习,我应该在家玩游戏或者出去逛街。

令我没想到的是,开学的第一天,我发现新东方的上课模式非常有趣,我爱上了来这里上课。我已经不 记得老师的名字了,我只记得他上课充满了激情。最吸引我的是他的上课模式。老师会跟我们讲人生道 理,讲生活经验。然后把这些东西和英语课结合起来。一次2小时的课程,他可能会有1小时都在跟我 们聊天。

如果老师能让你享受学习,那么我认为他们做得很好。这个老师的课让我觉得自己不是在学书本上知识, 而是去听他讲故事。这样的教学方式让我觉得很放松,同时又能让我专注听课,不知不觉就学到了很多。 开学的第一天我感到很惊喜很意外,所以我至今印象深刻。

25: 想了解更多的历史

Describe a period in history that you would like to learn more about. Some instructions you can follow: When this period in history was How you first became interested in this period in history What you already know about this period in history And explain why you would like to learn more about this period.

I have always had a penchant for history, I have recently developed a desire to have a better understanding of the Qing Dynasty.

I first encountered the Qing Dynasty during my history class while I was attending junior high school, however my curiosity in them was not piqued until later. I developed this interest after I viewed a handful of popular TV dramas, which were historical fictions situated during the Qing Dynasty. Although there was a wide variety of plots I became interested in the similar historical details of these dramas, in the culture, clothing, court etiquette, and of course, the historical figures too. What I most desperately wanted to discover was whether the protagonists in the TV series truly existed in our national history.

The Qing Dynasty was the final feudal dynasty in Chinese history. It was a period of rise and falls with a peak of economic and cultural development halfway through its duration. However, the Qing Dynasty eventually perished due to the corruption of the government and a slew of failed policies which led to the halt of economic and cultural development in the country.

I desire to increase my knowledge of the Qing Dynasty because, on the one hand, it is fascinating to compare the annals of history to modern TV series. There were many enthralling figures such as Ji Xiaolan and Heshen whose histories were transformed into dramatic masterpieces for the screen. On the other hand, I consider the period to be utterly intriguing since the Qing Dynasty is the most recent dynasty that practiced feudalism.

中文思路:

我是个对历史很感兴趣的人,我想对清朝历史多了解一些。

我最初学到清代历史是在初中的历史课上,但我真正对它感兴趣,是因为几部热播电视剧。这些电视剧 都是以清代为历史背景,虽然故事情节各有不同,但通过电视剧,让我对清代的文化,服饰,宫廷礼仪 产生了兴趣。当然还有历史人物。我很好奇电视剧中的主人公,在历史上是否真的存在。

清代是中国历史上最后一个封建王朝,在清代中期,国家的经济和文化发展都到达了一个高峰。到了后期,由于政府的腐败和闭关锁国的错误政策,清朝最终走向了灭亡。

我想更多的了解清朝的历史,一方面是因为这能让我把历史和我看的电视剧联系起来,这是一件很有趣的事。清朝有很多有意思的人物,比如纪晓岚、和珅等人,他们的故事被拍成许多影视作品。另一方面,毕竟清朝是离我最近的封建时代,所以我对它很感兴趣。